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PHS SPECIALISE IN SERVICES

THAT CREATE A BETTER WORKING
ENVIRONMENT; FROM WASHROOM
SERVICES, TO DUST MAT SERVICES,
AND LIVE AND REPLICA PLANTS
RIGHT THROUGH TO POINT OF

USE WATER DISPENSERS.

WE ARE ONE OF THE LEADING
PROVIDERS OF WORKPLACE
SERVICES IN THE UK, OFFERING
RENTAL AND SERVICING

OF WORKPLACE ITEMS.
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VISION

To be the best workplace services’
provider in the UK, offering quality
and value to cur customers and

a challenging rewarding career

for everyone in the Company.

STRATEGY

Grow customer contract pool through
* Maintaining a highly incentivised
sales team;

» Developing our service/product
offering through our workforce’s
creativity;

» Enhancing customer service by
developing “Project 24/24";

* Reducing customer churn by
delivering outstanding service.

Continue selective acquisition strategy
in low-technology growing markets,
with high margin contractual income
from large volumes of customers and
strang cash generation.,

Enhance margins through

* Leveraging the existing national
infrastructure;

* Continually improving operational
effectiveness;

* Transferring best practices across
the Group.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PHS is focused on providing high
quality workplace services to
customers in the commercial,
industrial, leisure, professional
and public market sectors.

Turnover*

£114.7m
+21.5%

£33.6m
+24.9%

Operating profit margins*
Improved from

28.5%
29.3%

Organic growth in contractual turnover*
7%
Profit before tax**

£17.7m

Basic and diluted earnings per share

4.18p

* For continuing operations
** Last year loss £3.6m
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

R LI CIVUT I (AT CCI LT

THE GROUP PERFORMED STRONGLY
IN A YEAR THAT SAW US BECOME

A PUBLIC COMPANY AND ENTER
THE FTSE 250
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Highlights Alf divisicns continue to deliver improved
performance and our acguisttions have been integrated
on schedule.

« Turnover from Con{inuizg operations for the year ended
31 March 2002 increased by 21.5% to £114.7m with
operaling profit from coatinuing operations increasing
by 24.9% to £33.6m.

» Operating profit margins from continuing operations
improved from 28.5% 10 29.3%,

* Basic earnings per share were 4.18p (2001 toss per share
of 1.63p).

» Net cash inflow from operations was £35.9m compared
to £30,.3m last year, reflecting an operating profit to ¢ash
conversion of 1079%.

* Net debt of £69.5m with resulting gearing of 28.5%.

This was a landmark year for PHS, which saw the Company
list on the London Stock Exchange in june 2001, and [ am
deﬁ%hled to report a strong set of maider: full-vear resuits.

All of the four business areas of washroom services, dust
mat services, live and replica plants and point of use water
dispensers showed improved performance during the year
with growth In turnover and operating profits, In addition,
PHS now operates In a fifth area, the crate rental market,
following the acquisition of Teacrate plc in Aprit 2002.

As a Group, the business continued to be driven forward
through a number of internal initiatives to improve customer
retention and through a series of bolt-on acquisitions,

Organic growth in contractual turnover of 7% was
achieved year on year, We continue to drive growth
through our highly incentivised sales force and develop
our product/service offerings leveraging the creativity of our
marketing and design teams. Service produclivity and quality
measured by percentage of contractual services completad
on time improved. A number of new supplier contracts were
negotiated in the year which will deliver expected ongoing
annual savings of aver £1m.

Supplementing our organic growth, the Group invested
£30.2m in 25 bolt-on acquisitions in lne with the acquisition
strateqy set out at fotation. These included the purchase of
The UK Water Group Limited, which has doubled Lhe size
of our fast growing point of use water dispenser business.

We anticipate productivity benefits from our investment

in iT and through improved route and cuslomer density.

We witl continue 1o work in partnership with our key suppliers
to deliver g quality service and value for our customers,

Board changes During fune 2001, the Group listed on
the London Stock Exchange. Two non-executive directors
from Charterhouse Development Capital, Stuart Simpson
and Lionel Giacomolio resigned on & fune 2001 and we
woulkd like 1o take this opportunify to thank them for their
contributions, Al the same time, two new non-gxecutives
joined the Board, namely John Allan, who is also

Chief Executive of Exel plc and jan Astrand, previously
Chiel Executive of Axus International Inc.

People We continue 1o invest in the training and
development of cur people recognising that they are our
most ém;;.ortant assets. We delivered nearly 6,000 training
days in the year to our workforce of over 2,000 people,
twould like to thank everyone for their hard work and
commitment over the past year.

Outlook We continue to operate in areas which are generally
resilient to economic factors. We expect to continue to deliver
sound organic growth supplemented by acquisitions in each
of our core business areas,

We moved into a fifth workplace services area at the
beginning of cur new finandial year with the acquisition
of Teacrate plc, one of the UK’ largest specialist ¢rate rental
businesses. This move into a growing market will provide.
further organic and acquisition growth opportunities for
the Group.

We expect to continue to deliver year on year turnover
and Proﬂt growth as we have consistently since the Group
was founded in 1963, and ook forward to a successhut
40th year in 2003,

e
Bob Mackenzie
Chairman
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GROUP AT A GLANCE

PHS OPERATES THROUGH ITS
FOUR DIVISIONS, PROVIDING
QUALITY WORKPLACE SERVICES
TO CUSTOMERS NATIONWIDE

“phs® Treadsiart

PHS Washrooms is one of the UK's largest providers of
washroom services, supplying the complete range of
essential washroem products from sanitary disposal to

air fresheners. Customers are provided with total service
management including free product installation and free
emergency call out. Service arrangements are flexible and
PHS Washrooms are the only washroom service company in
the UK to offer a 7 days a week, 24 hours a day emergency
response service. A range of washroom and complimentary
workplace consumables are also available for the customer
to purchase directly.

Turmover

PHS Treadsmart is the UK’s leading supplier of serviced dust
mats. They provide a range of mats for both indoor and
outdoor use, including a range of health and safety mats.
Trained service personnel instail the Treadsmart mats, and
with the lift and lay service, the mats are regularly removed
for specialist laundering. Treadsmart’s commitment to service
means the mats are immediately replaced so that customers’
floors are never left without protection.

Turnover

£83.8m +24.7%

Operating profit

£13.5m +7.1%

Operating profit

£40.0m +22.7%

Operating margin

£3.4m +30.8%

Operating margin

47.7%

24.9%
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“phs Greeniéﬁ’

PHS Greenleaf is the largest provider of live and replica plant
displays in the UK. These can be designed to suit areas from
the smallest reception to the largest interior landscaping
Eroject. PHS Greenleaf has the experience, horticultural

nowledge and creative skills to make a positive difference
to customers’ businesses,

Tumover

PHS Waterlogic is the UK market leader in point of use
water dispensers. PHS Waterlogic use superior technology
which is distinct from conventional water coolers in that it
purifies mains water and dispenses it in a choice of hot, still
or sparkling.

Turnover

£14.1m +4.4%

Operating profit

£3.3m +200%

Operating profit

£2.0m +17.6%

Oberating margin

£0.9m

Operating margin

14.1%

26.2%
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH IN
THE CORE BUSINESSES, SUPPORTED
BY INVESTMENT OF £30.2M IN

25 BOLT-ON ACQUISITIONS
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Results for the year ended 31 March 2002 in a year which
saw the Company gain entry to the London Stock Exchange
and subsequently to the FTSE 254, the Group performed
strongly with increased turnover and operating profits from
each of the four core businesses operating throughout

the year, namely: PHS Washrooms, PHS Treadsmart,

PHS Greenleaf and PHS Waterlogic.

The business PHS now provides services in five main areas:
washroom services, dust mat services, live and replica plants,
point of use water dispensers, and crate rentals, the last of
which was only recently acquired in April 2002. We are a
customer focused, sales driven organisation. We run separate
sales and service operations for each of the businesses with
central marketing, finance and administration.

Business development Supgorting our organic growth,
business development has been driven by increasing our
investment in marketing, extra sales resources and the
provision of new products and services, Our operational
initiatives aimed at %mprovin% customer retention levels
far the year also proved highly successfut,

The first of these initiatives is “Project Fast Response”,
which relates to our people training in customer refationship
management to help us deliver better service and take
ownership of customers” needs.

The second initiative is “Project 24/24”, which provides our
washroom customers with a 24 hour, 7 day per week service
where PHS employees are available to take the customers’
calls and deal with any isstes within 24 real time hours.

The third and newest initiative supporting organic growth
has been “Leads United”, a new sales iead generation profect
that encourages our people, suppliers and customers to
provide sales leads,

We have also Invested in our existing customer database
to improve our ability to selt a wider range of products
and services.

Acquisitions As set out at the time of our flotation in June
2001, we plan {o continue to develop our workplace services
business in low technolo i/, high margin, growing markets

<

where there is fragmented competition and large volumes of

customers requiring rental, service, and maintenance services
on long-term contracls, spending relatively low sums of
money on those services, The larget seclors will require low
capilal investment and be strongly cash generative.

The 25 bolt-on acquisitions made during the year at a total
cost of £30.2m fitted our tightly defined acquisition criteria
and have been duly integrated on schedule. Qur rate of
acquisitions to date has been consistent with the £100m we
identified for investment in acquisitions over the course of our
first three years as a listed company.

The most significant acquisitions during the year are set
out below:

Business activity

Business name Consideration {£m}

Dec-esS Direct Supplies Tele-sales of washraar and workplace 29

Limited consurabies. This acquisition
{Aprl 2007} was a bolt-on to PHS Direct, our existing
tele-sefling business.
Personnel Hyglene Provision of washroom services in 29
Services (NI} Limited Noerthern ireland. This business
(May 2001) E?reviouﬂy operated wader ficence.
his acquisition expanded the

provision of our services into
a new geographical region.

Doap Services Limited Callection and disposai of cut-of-date 2.3
(june 200} gjrescription»oniy medicines
his acouisition expanded our service

range with a com%ﬁmeﬁwr}’ service,
the provision of which benelits from
our service infrastructure.

£iite Management
Systems Limited
{October 2001}

flental of air freshiners. 5.2
This acquisition was a bolt-on o our
existing washroom: services business,

The UK Water Group Umited  Rental and maintenance of plurnbed 6.3
{ecember 2007) i int at use purified water dispensers,

This acquisition was  bolt-on to our

existing vwater dispensers business.

Our acquisition following the year-end of Teacrate ple, one of
the UK’ leading specialist crate rental businesses, took us into
a new market which shares many of the same characteristics
as our existing operations. As an acquisition opportunity,
Teacrate fitted closely with our criteria for high margin, low
technology rental businesses In fast growth markets.
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Costs and margins We continue Lo invest in the
improvemenl of route planning and service performance
monitoring and worked hard in the year to improve product
and service density at customer locations.

Our procurement initiatives, which commenced in
fuly 1998, continue to deliver real cost reductions as we agree
long-term partnership deals with our suppliers. The total
savings from this initiative now total over £5.0m per annum,

PHS Washrooms Turnover grew irom £67.2m 10 £83.8m,
an increase of 24.7% in the vear,

Divisional operating profit before central costs grew from
£32.6m fo £40.0m, an increase of 22.7%, The margin moved
from 48.5% to 47.7% as a result of variations in the mix of
products/services sold.

New products faunched included the Fasy Vend, the Maxi
Ptus Nappy Disposal Unit and additions fo the prestigious
platinum range, Such new products have additional features
and benefits, which enable PHS to make higher annual renta
charges and achieve higher margins. In addition, our design
and assembly facility in Tamworth continued to improve
productivity, customer service and stock turn,

PHS Direct, which tele-sells washroom consumables,
maved 10 a new warehousing and distribution centre
in the Midlands to accommodate the current and future
growth. During the course of the vear, the key accounts
feam won a contract to supply all Tesco store washrooms
with air fresheners,

PHS All Clear, our clinical waste business, won a
contract (o supply The Ashbourne Nursing Homes Group
and a new special waste team was set up ic focus on the
provision of waste collection services to dentists, vets,
chemists and dociors,

In terms of administrative efficiency, customer response
times improved and our customer care teams contributed
to a further improvement in contractual customer retention
1o 85% for the year. in addition, excellent savings were
delivered from the procurement initiative, largely on
chemicals and plastics.

During the year, £22.6m was invested in 19 acguisitions,
including Personnel Hyaiene Services (NI} Limited which
previousty acted as our distributor in Northern Ireland where
we have since established a field sales force to accelerate
organic growth,

PHS Treadsmart Turnover grew from £12.6m to £13.5m, an
increase of 7.19% in the year,

Divisional operating profit before centrai costs grew from
£2.6m to £3.4m, an increase of 30.8%. The margin improved
from 20.4% 1o 24.9%,

The improvement in the margin was the result of four
main factors; an increase of neariy 4% in average rental prices;
a reduction in mat procurement costs; an improvement in
the rental pool mix away from standard mats and into
specialist mats such as our recently faunched health and
safely range; and an investment of £0.4m, for new laundry
equipment in Brentford, which saved £0.2m of mai cleaning
costs in the year,

Treadsmart continued to be very active with initiatives to
improve contractual customer retention, which increased to
85% for the year. Excellence in customer service was the main
focus, but other initiatives included reqular customer courtesy
calls and a “Good to Come Back” campaign targeted at
customers who had left Treadsmart more than nine months
previously. As part of the continued drive to improve
operational efficiency and customer service, a new depot was
opened in Andover,

PHS Greenleaf Turnover grew from £13.5m 0 £14.1m, an
increase of 4,49 in the year,

Divisional operating profit before central costs grew from
£1.7m 1o £2.0m, an increase of 17.6%. The margin improved
from 12.5% 10 14.1%.

As part of the continued focus on mar{gins and profitability,
a number of depots were consolidated. Those at Heathrow
and Welwyn closed with Cg)eople moving to our Chiswick
operation and Brentwood closed with people moving to our
Waltham Abbey operation. The depot at Iver Heath was
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Divisional oporaling
Turnover™ profiLty
(L) (£m;

1 PHS Washrooms 874
2 PHS Trendsmary 744
3 PHS Creenieni 4%

4 PHS Waterlogic 2%
Profit £46.2m

1 PHS Washrooms 73%
2 PHE Trendgmarl 12%
3 PHS Groenteal 124
4 PHS Wateriogic 3%

*For condnuing operalions
*For conlinuing operations and belore cenlrat costs of
E11.0m and £0.9m of acquisilion inlegration costs,

closed towards the end of Lhe second half and replaced by a
small new depot in Newbury that should improve customer
service along the M4 corridor,

Price increases were implemented following the
introduction of improved products and containers. A new
live plant supply contract has been negotiated which came
into effect in April 2002, delivering expected savings of
£0.1m per annum,

A new range of sitk flowers was launched in the
second-half aimed at hotels and corporate headquarters
in London and the South East. The division won several
prestigious new coniracts and awards. These included
the contract to provide interior landscaping for the new
headgquarters of GlaxoSmithKline in London. Greenleaf
aiso won the national contract for the Bradford & Bingley
Building Society Group, and the highly coveted American
Landscape Contractors of America Grand Award for the
Sunderand Winter Garden Project.

Customer retention received significant management
attention in the second-half resulting in contractual customer
retention levels showing signs of improvement, at 71% for
the year. Customer care resource was increased and the
management sfrengthened in this area.

During the year, £1.3m was invested in five acquisitions.

PHS Waterlogic Turnover grew from £1.17m to £3.3m, an
increase of 200%.

Divisional operating profit before central costs improved
from a loss of £21,000 to a profit of £0.9m with a margin
of 26.2%.

During the year, Waterlogic established a national sales
force capable of delivering strong organic growth in a rapidly
growing market place. New producls were launched,
including the W35G, a new tabletop water dispenser aimed
at the smali office market (10 employees and under) and a
new melallic sitver version of the gest selling product, the
WESS0. Marketing aclivity was focused on winning new
custorners as quickly as possible and an outside agency was
utilised to maximise “hot leads”. Contractuat customer
retention was 34% for the year,

In early January 2002, the Group announced an acquisition
investment of £6.3m 1o purchase the main competitor in
the point of use water dispensers market, The UK Water
Group Limited. The post-acquisition integration process is
on track and the merged business is aiming for rapid growth
over the next few years,

People We aim 10 operate in a way that will create an
gnvironment to generate commitment from our people
at every level, We stress the importance of creativity and
Innovation and provide the opportunity for our people o
contribute their ideas to improving our business,

We believe in rewarding above average performance
through bonuses, commissions and career progression and
in the year we delivered nearly 6,000 training days for
our staff. Currently we have 45 people on NEBS programmes
and 73 people studying NVQs.

Wherever possible, we promote from within buton a
regular basis bring in new talent from outside to keep the
business alive with new ideas.

Outlock it is our goal to be the best workplace services’
provider in the UK offering quaiity and value to cur customers
and a challenging, rewarding career for everyane in the Group.

With strong cash generation and low ¢earing, we are well
placed 10 continue to grow organically and supplement that
growth with selective acquisitions.

We expect to continue to deliver strong profit growth and
operating cash inflow as welf as maintain our unbroken record
of year on year turnover growth. We look forward with
confidence to the year ahead.

Peter Cohen

Chief Executive
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

INCREASED TURNOVER AND
OPERATING PROFIT SUPPLEMENTED
BY REDUCED INTEREST CHARGES
FROM REFINANCING

The Company successfully fioated on the London Stock
Exchange in june 2001, At the flotation price of 80p per
share, the Group was valued at £413.6m.,

The nat proceeds of the flotation were £237 .5m after the
deduction of underwriting commissions and expenses payable
by the Group. The proceeds were used for the repayment of
certain bank debt and certain unsecured loan notes.

Results for the year ended 31 March 2002 Turnover from
conlinuing operations increased 1o £114.7m from £84.4m,
an increase of 21.5%. Tumover growth was achieved in all
businesses from a combination of acquisitions and steang
otganic growth.

Operating profit from continuing operations increased to
£33.6m from £26.9m, an increase of 24.9%, The operating
profit margin has improved to 29.3% from 28 5%, through
continued leveraging of the Group's infrastructure.

Pre-tax profit was £17.7m compared 10 a loss of £3.6m
last year and basic earnings per share were 4.18p compared
to a loss per share of 1.63p in the previous vear.

Net cash inflow from operations was £35.9m compared
to £30.3m in 2001,

Acquisitions Acquisitions form a core part of our growth
sirategy and during the course of the year, we invested
£30.2m in 25 bolt-on acquisitions. These resuited in £30.8m
of goodwill which has been capitalised on the balance sheet
as an intangible asset. More detailed commentary on our
amortisation of goodwill policy is provided in note 1 to the
financial statements,

Disposals During the year, the Group disposed of both
investments in cverseas subsidiaries: PHS Inc (operating in
the USA) and PHS Protector BY (operating in Belgium},
Both investments were considered ta be of an insufficent
size to bolt-on tocal acquisitions or to warrant central
management resource,

The consideration received for the sale of these
investiments, net of the disposal expenses incurred was £0.4m,
The exceptional loss realised on these disposals was £1,.0m,
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Interest Interest payable and similar charges for the thiee
maonths pre-flotation was £11.6m, This amount included
an exceptional charge of £2.6m for previously unamortised
issue costs that were written off on repayment of the
pre-flotation borrowings, and an exceptional charge of
£1.7m for the canceliation of an interest rate swap.

triterest payable on borrowings for the nine months
posi-flotation was £3.4m. This reduction in the post-flotation
nterest char%;e resulted from applying the flotation proceeds
to significantly reduce borrowings,

Borrowings and gearing Net debt at the year-end was
£69.5m compared to £67.2m at the half-year, and £28%.1m
at 31 March 2001.

The resulting net gearing was 28.5% compared 1o 29.4%
at the half-year.

Cash flow The cash flows connecied with the refinancing of
the Group on flotetion are summarised below:

Cash inflow generated from operating activities was £35.9m
compared {0 £30.3m in 2001, This improvement was
achieved despite an increase in working capital requirements
of £3.8m fargely due to the growth in the business,
In addition, the balance sheet at 31 March 2002 inclizded
a prepayment for stock that was paid during the year
under the terms of a distributorship agreement finked to
the acquisition of The UK Water Group Limited.

Free cash flow should continue to be principaily reinvested
into acguisitions.

Capital expenditure The Group spent £8.9m gross on
capital expenditure, which represented 137% of its £6.5m
deprecialion charge. Sales of fixed assets raised £0,9m,

Gur businesses are predominantly of a service or rental
natire and consequently the majority of the capital spend
relates to equipment instalied at custormers’ premises that
reqjuires periodic replacement in addition {0 expansion and
enhancement.

m £m

Finance inflows
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares at flotation 2500
Less: kxpenses and commission paid (12.5)

2375
New bank loan drawn-down at flotstion GB.6
Less: lssue costs incurred 0.8

678

3053
Finance outflows
Repayment of secured senior debt 1463
Repayment of unsecured subordinated loan notes 1227
nterest peid on secured senfor debt 7.7
Interest paid on unsecured subordinated loan notes 253
Interest vate swap canceliation fee 11

(302.9

24

Fquipment at
customers’ Cther fixed

premises assats iotal
£m £m £m

Year ended 31 March 2002
Cash outflow on Capital expenditre 6.0 29 89
Depreciation charge 42 23 €5
B 143% 126% 13/%

Year ended 31 March 2001
Cash outflow on capital expenditure 51 29 8.0
Depreciation charge 4.0 1.6 36
% 128% 1819% 143%
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Dividend The Board is recommending a final dividend of
0.29p per share, giving a total dividend for the year of 0.42p

per share, The folal dividend is covered 8.5 times by eamings.

If aporoved, the Group will pay the final dividend on

21 Auguist 2002 10 all shareholders registered on 26 july 2002,

Treasury The Group manages treasury risk centrally with the
aim of minimising risk and providing sufficient cost-effective
financing.

Liquidity The Group's poficy on liquidity is to ensure a balance
between coni%nui‘(?/ of furding and flexibility,

The Group had bank-borrowing faciiities totaliing
£107.0m, of which £71.6m expires on 7 June 2006, and
£35.4m expires on 7 june 2004, Of these facilities, £82.9m
were utilised at 31 March 2002,

Since the vear-end, we have utiised a further £18m of
these facilities to purchase Teacrate pl, The Well Corporation
Limited and two other smaller businesses, We agreed with
our bankers 1o an increase in the facilities of £33.0m, which
will expire on 7 June 2004, These additional facilities will be
provided on a secured basis at existing interest rates.

Interest on borrowings The Group's interes{ on borrowings
are largely denoted at floating rates of interest, and in
the current environment of low gearing and high interest
cover the Directors consider that the level of interest rate
risk s acceptable.

Foreign exchange The Group trades principally in sterling.
The effect of currency risk to the Group is therefore not
deemed material although management continually
reviews this,

Taxation The overall tax credit for the year is £0.8m.
This results frem accounting for deferred tax on a full
provision basis in accordance with FRS 19 “Deferred tax”.
A deferred tax asset of £4.8m has been recognised, which
arises predominantly as a consequence of deprecdiation
charged exceeding capital alfowances claimed Lo-date,
and ihe carry forward of tax losses capable of being used
to off-set future taxable profits,

The current tax charge on profits for the year is £4.0m,
a rate of 23% on profits before tax. This is fower than the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% due mainly
to the £1.6m effect of capital allowances ciaimed being in
excess of depreciation charged in the year. The underlying
level of this current year charge on profits, while rising
slowly, should remain significantly below 30% for the
foreseeable future.

Ay ) e )

Keith Bland
Group Finance Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Robert David Mackenzie Non-executive Chairman (age 49)
Robert Mackenzie joined the Board of PHS as non-executive
Chairman in September 20090. Prior to joining PHS, he was
Chairman and Chief Executive of Naticnal Parking
Corporation Limited, and Chairman of Greenflag Limited.

He was also Group Finance Director of BET Plc from 1997 1o
1994 and Group Finance Director of Storehouse pic and Chief
Executive of Refail Operations from 1989 to 1990, From 1986
to 1989 he was a Financlal Comptroller for Hanson plc.

Peter James Cohen Chief Executive (uge 49)

Peter Cohen joined PHS as Chief Executive in April 1998,
Prior 10 joining PHS he held the position of Chief Executive
of Holt Lloyd Group Limited, a manufacturer and marketer
of consumer care products, from 1991 o 1998. He was
Prasident of Power Conversion Inc./Crompton Flernacell
from 1989 to 1991 and before that he was Managin
Director of Crompton Vidor Limited and Hawker Sidc?e!ey
Dynamics Engineering,

Keith Bland Group Finance Director (age 50)

Keith Bland joined PHS as an accountant in September 1984.
In April 1989, he was appuointed to the Board of PHS as the
Finance Director, He previcusly worked as an accountant at
Marconi Radar Systemns Limited and International Ferry Freight
Limited. Immediately before joining PHS, he was a senior
auditor at the National Audit Office. He qualified as an
accountant with Gearge Littie Sebire in London in

December 1975,

John Muray Allan Non-executive director (age 53)

John Alian joined the Board of PHS as a non-executive director
in June 2001 and is Chief Executive of Exel plc. He joined
Ocean Group ple, as Chief Executive in September 1994 and
in May 2000 Gcean Group and Exel (formerly NFC) merged
to form Exel plc. Previously John Allan was appointed to the
main board of BET in 1987, with specific responsibilities as
Director of Business Services (Europe) and Group Marketing
Director. He is a non-executive director of Wolseley Plc and a
member of the CBI Prasident’s Committee, He was previously
Chairman of the CBI Transport Policy Commitles and also a
former Chairman of the Marketing Society of Great Britain,

fan Gunnar Astrand Non-executive director (age 55)

Jan Astrand joined the Board of PHS as a non-executive
director in june 2001. He is alsa Chairman of Car Park Group
AB in Sweden and a non-executive director of Northgate Pic,
Prior to this he was President and Chief Fxecutive of Axus
internaticnal Inc. from 1994 o 1999, from 1989 to 1994
ne was Finance Director for Hertz Europe Lid. Between 1986
and 1988, he worked for Commaodore Inlernational Lid
initially as Vice President of Finance for Europe and uitimately
as Chief Financiat Officer.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2002

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2002,

Principal activity and business review

The Group is engaged in the provision of workplace services on customers’ premises. There are four core business areas that
have been operating throughout the year: washroom services, dust mat services, live and replica plants, and point of use water
dispensers. The vast majority of custorners have rentai, service and maintenance contracts. A review of the Group’s business and
discussion of likely future developments is provided in the Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive's review and Financial review
on pages 4 to 12.

Results and dividends
Operating profit for the year was £33,567,000 (2001: £26,744,000).

The result for the year after taxation was a profit of £18,443,000 (2001: loss £3,342,000),

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.29p per ordinary share (2001: £nil} and paid an intesim
dividend of 0.13p per ordinary share (2001: £nil) on 25 January 2002. Subject to approval by sharehclders of the final dividend,
a total dividend of 0.42p per ordinary share will be paid in respect of the year at a total cost of £2,172,000. If approved, the
Group will pay the final dividend on 21 August 2002 to all shareholders registered on 26 |uly 2002,

Post balance sheet events
Details of all material post balance sheet events are given in note 33 to these financiai statements.

Directors
The Directors of the Company at 31 March 2002 are listed on page 13. The following two Directors also sat on the Board
from the beginning of the year until resigning on the dates shown.

5 D Simpson (resigned 5 June 2001)
L Giacomotto (resigned 5 june 2001)

The Directors’ remuneration and interests in shares, share options and debentures are shown in the Remuneration report on
pages 16 and 17.

In accordance with the Articles of Assaciation, all five Directors will retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Biographical details of each Director are given on page 13,

Details of the role of the Board, including the role of non-executive directors, are given in the Corporate governance
statement on pages 18 and 19.

Policy on the payment of creditors

It is Group policy to comply with terms of payment negotiated with suppliers. Where payment terms are not negotiated the
Group endeavours to adhere to the supplier's standard terms. The Company does not trade and consequently cannot disclose
an average creditors payment period. The Group’s average payment period in the year for the continuing businesses was 55
days {2001: 50 days).

Substantial shareholdings
As at 22 May 2002, the Group had been notified under Section 198 of the Companies Act 1985 of the following substantial
shareholdings in the ordinary share capital of PHS Group plc.

Name of shareholder Interest in ordinary share capital
$G Asset Management 10.0%
Fidelity International Limited 8.0%
Charterhouse General Partners (V1) Limited 7.0%
Axa Investment Managers 31%
CGNU plc 51%
Morley Fund Management Limited 3.1%
Employees

It is Group policy to ensure that employees are provided with information on all matters of concern to them. Accordingly,
appropriate steps are taken to ensure that employees or their representatives are aware of the financial and economic factors
affecting the Group's performance, are consulted wherever necessary and are encouraged generally to be involved in the
Group's overall performance.

It is established Group policy to offer the same opportunities to disabled people as to ali others in matters of recruitment and
career advancement, provided they have the abilities to perform the tasks required, with or without training, and to provide
retraining where necessary in cases when disability arises during employment with the Group.

Research and development
Technical development is considered an important part of the Group’s ongoing advancement. Resources are employed in the

development of new products or improving existing products to continuously improve the range and quality of products that
we offer our customers.

All such expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution that they be
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Keith Bland
Company Secretary

10 June 2002
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration committee
The Remuneration committee is responsible for developing the Group's remuneration policy and determining the remuneration
packages of the executive directors. It is composed of all three non-executive directors and chaired by ) G Astrand.

Remuneration policy

The committee makes recommendations to the Board on the Group’s framework of executive remuneration and its cost after
giving full consideraticn to the matters set out in schedules A and B of the combined code. Where appropriate, reference is
made to independent and authoritative surveys.

The committee's policy is to provide salary and other benefits to executive directors that are competitive with regard to
those on offer at other comparable companies. The packages provided are intended to attract, retain and motivate each
executive director to meet the Group’s objectives and so enhance its performance. The committee will always have regard that
it should avoid paying more than necessary for this purpose.

A strong link between the level of remuneration and individual performance against agreed targets is maintained.

The performance-related element of each remuneration package forms a significant proportion of the total, designed to give
the Directors incentive to perform at the highest levels for the ultimate benefit of the shareholders.

The committee will also consider compensation in the event of early termination of Director’s contracts.

Executive share option scheme

The Company operates an executive share plan, the PHS Group Discretionary Share Option Scheme, The discretionary scheme
is divided into two sections, Section A and Section B, under which options can be granted. Section B is an Infand Revenue
approved scheme and grants to individuals are subject to the limit imposed by the Finance Act 1996 on the value of shares
placed under option, currently £30,000.

The discretionary scheme is only available to employees and full-time Directors who may, from time to time, be selected by
the Remuneration committee to participate. No eligible employee is entitled as of right to participate in the discretionary
scheme. No payment is required on the grant of an opticn and no share options are granted at a discount.

In December 2001, options over 1,136,581 shares were granted. These options were subject to a performance criteria that
they will only be exercisable if the Company’s earnings per share over a three-year period grows at a rate greater than the
increase in the Retail Prices Index plus 2% per annum.

Savings-related share option scheme
The PHS Group Savings Related Share Option Scheme is eligible to all employees, including executive directors.

Employees make monthly contributions of up to £250 per month over a three-year period. At the end of this period
employees have the right to buy shares in the Company at a price fixed at the time of the option grant. The price per share at
which options may be granted is not less than 80% of the mid-market price on the last day of dealing prior to the offer date.

Remuneration package
Both executive directors have a service agreement that specifies a notice period both to and from the Company of 12 months.
The present remuneration package for executive directors comprises:

Basic annual safary — this is reviewed and determined by the Remuneration committee. I

Annugl incentive bonus — each executive director is entitled to an annual bonus in respect of each financial year. The bonus is
linked to the audited profit achieved by the Group in relation to budgeted profit.

Pensions — Both executive directors are members of the Group’s defined contribution pension scheme to which the Group makes
regular contributions as a percentage of annual salary.

Other benefits - these include health insurance, company car and fuel or car allowances. These benefits are not pensionable,

The Chairman and other non-executive directors have been initially appointed for a three-year period, which then automatically
continues until terminated by three month’s notice from either party. The Board has determined the remuneration of the
Chairman and other non-executive directors for the initial three-year term at the time of approving their appointment.

Neither the Chairman nor other non-executive directors participate in the Group’s pension scheme or bonus plans nor are
they entitled to any benefits from the Company other than their agreed fees and reimbursement of reasonable expenses
incurred in carrying out their duties.
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Directors’ interests in shares and debentures
The beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the ordinary shares of the Company and loan notes issued by a
subsidiary at 31 March are set out below:

Interest in ordinary shares

of the Company

31 March 2002 31 March 2001+

Number Number

R D Mackenzie 2,045,452 202,020
K Bland 3,647,500 400,000
P ] Cohen 7,290,000 800,000
| M Allan 134,756 -
} G Astrand 60,000 -

Interest in 10% fixed rate
“C"” unsecured loan notes 2009

31 March 2002 31 March 2001*

£ £
K Bland - 250,000
P | Cohen - 1,000,000

*or date of appointment if later

The 10% fixed rate “C” unsecured loan notes 2009 were issued by PHS Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company and were
redeemed at par at the time of the flotation.
No Director has any beneficial interest in the share options that the Company has granted.

There has been no change in the interests stated between 31 March 2002, and the date on which these financial statements
were signed on behalf of the Board.

Directors’ remuneration
The emoluments of the Directors of the Company for the years ended 31 March are disclosed below:

Basic 2002 2001
salary or Annual Other 2002 2001 Pension Pension
fees bonus benefits Total Total payments payments
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Non-executive Chairman
R D Mackenzie 73 - - 73 78 - -
Executive directors
P} Cohen* 175 14 10 199 195 45 14 |
K Bland 96 8 10 114 104 15 14
Non-executive directors
] M Allan 49 - - 49 - - -
| G Astrand 49 - - 49 - - -

*highest paid Director

None of the Directors has waived any part of their ernoluments during the year,

| M Allan applied three years’ annual fees paid in advance to purchase ordinary shares at flotation. If ] M Allan ceases to be a
Director before the expiry of the period for which his fees were paid in advance, a specified portion of the ordinary shares for which
he subscribed using these annual fees will be liable to be repurchased for an aggregate price of £1.

S D Simpson and L Giacomotto resigned on 5 June 2001. Fees of £6,000 (2001: £33,000) were paid to Charterhouse
Development Capital Limited in respect of their services. No other amounts were paid in respect of these two Directors, neither
were they entitled to any compensation for loss of office.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Combined Code

The Combined Code for Corporate Governance (“the code™) contains both principles and best practice provisions. The manner
in which the Group applies the provisions that relate to Board matters, internal controls and relations with shareholders are set
out below. Provisions relating to Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Remuneration report on pages 16 and 17.

Board of Directors
The Board comprises three non-executive (including the Chairman who is responsible for running the Board) and two executive
directors (including the Chief Executive who is responsible for running the Group’s business). The biographies of all Directors are
detailed on page 13.

All three non-executive directors are independent of management and bring a range of business, finance and other relevant
experience to the Group. R D Mackenzie has been appeinted as the Senior Independent Director.

Each non-executive director has a letter of appointment approved by the Board with specified terms that covers a three-year
period from appointment. Both executive directors have a service agreement that specifies a notice period both to and from the
Company of one year.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specificaily reserved for its attention. This schedule includes any question
regarding the appointment or removal of the Company Secretary, as well as the constitution and terms of reference of each of
the Remuneration, Nomination and Audit committees.

Following their appointment to the Board in June 2001, both | M Allen and ) G Astrand participated in an induction
program designed to give them appropriate training to properly fulfil their roles as non-executive directors. This program
involved meetings with, and presentations from, appropriate senior management combined with visits to a number of
operational depots.

The Board has met six times since the flotaticn on 29 June 2001, supplemented by frequent contact between meetings.

The future intention is for the Board to routinely meet nine times each year, with additional meetings called as and when required.

At least one week before each Board meeting, each Director is supplied with an agenda and sufficient supporting papers that
provide the appropriate information requited for him to properly discharge his duties. Included within these papers are detailed
monthly accounts for each of the Group’s operating divisions as well as on an overall basis. The accounts are supplemented by
written reports from the executive directors and appropriate financial analysis. Other papers deal with the cash flow position of
the Group and proposals regarding future potential acquisitions. The monthly accounts and analysis are also circulated in
months where no Board meeting is held,

The papers may not always be sufficient to provide the Board with all the infermation they require. In such instances, senior
management are always available to answer any further questions that may arise, The Board constantly reviews the quality,
nature and presentation of information provided and request changes where they feel such ¢changes will offer information that is
more appropiiate.

All Directors have the right to seek external professional advice in the furtherance of their duties at the expense of the Group
and have unfettered access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

The three principal commiltees of the Board are the Remuneration committee, Audit committee and Nomination
committee. Each committee has its own terms of reference that has been approved by the Board.

Remuneration committee
The constitution and work of the Remuneration committee is set out in the Remuneration report on pages 16 and 17.

Nomination committee
The Nomination committee makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
Board succession.

The committee operates according to written terms of reference. These include consideration of the size and structure of
the Board; the appointment and duties of executive directors and their continuation (or not) in service; the appointment and
re-appointment of non-executive directors; and whether Directors retiring in accordance with the Articles of Association should
be put forward for re-election.

The committee comprises all three non-executive directors and is chaired by | M Allan, A minimum of one meeting per
financial year is held with additional meetings called as and when any member requires.

The Nomination committee will constantly review the composition of the Board to ensure that it contains the necessary
skills, knowledge and experience to properly discharge its duties. The Articles of Association provide that any Director appointed
by the Board must retire from office, but may submit him or herself for re-election, at the first subsequent Annual General
Meeting. In addition, any Director who, at the date of any Annual General Meeting, will have held office for more than
30 months since appointment, or re-appointment at a General Meeting, must retire from office at that Annual General Meeting,
but may submit him or herself for re-election.

Audit commitiee
The Audit committee assists the Board in determining whether it is properly discharging its responsibilities for financial reporting
and corporate governance {including matters pertaining to the Group's internal control systems).

The committee comprises all three non-executive directors and is chaired by R D Mackenzie. Meetings are routinely held
twice annually with additionai meetings held at the behest of either the Chairman or external auditors.

The committee operates according to written terms of reference. These include reviewing the scope and results of the audit,
its cost-effectiveness and the auditors’ independence and objectivity. The committee also maintains a review of the volume of
non-audit services provided in order to balance the objectivity of the auditors with value for money.

The Audit committee will review the interim and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
The review will consider (but is not limited to) the accounting policies adopted; areas where major judgments have been
exercised; compliance with accounting standards, stock exchange, legal and other regulatory requirements. The committee will
also consider any matters arising from any audit, whether communicated verbally or in writing, and give due consideration to
any action recommended.

As part of the terms of reference of the Audit committee, it is responsible for monitoring management’s commitment to
establishing and operating a sound system of internal control. It is also responsible for reviewing, at least annually, the
effectiveness of the internal control system (including financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management).
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Internal control

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Internal control is
defined in the code as all controls, including financial, operational and compliance and risk management. Any such system of
internal control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control in place during the year.

The key features of the Group’s system of internal control which have been established are as follows:

« [dentification and evaluation of key risks applicable to each area of business is monitored and assessed on a continuous basis
at executive committee and Board level. This is supplemented by the annual process of preparing business plans and detailed
budgets, and the half-year review process;

» The production of accurate and timely financial management information reported against budget and forecast to the Board;
*» The control of key financial risks through clearly laid down authorisation levels and proper segregation of accounting duties;
* Regular executive committee meetings of the Group’s most senior managers and executive directors;

¢ The integrity and competence of personnel is ensured through high recruitment standards and subsequent training courses.
High quality personnel are seen as an essential part of the control environment;

« Capital expenditure is regulated by the annual budget and half-year review process. For investment in business acquisitions,
detailed written proposals need to be submitted to the Board. Due diligence reviews are performed by the Group’s own staff
along with extensive use of external advisers.

Shareholder communication

Communications with shareholders is given a high priority by the Group with both executive directors regularly meeting with
institutional investors and analysts. Private investors have the opportunity to meet and question the Directors at the Annual
General Meeting. It is Group policy to respond to any written requests from shareholders throughout the year.

It is the Group's policy to propose a separate resolution on each substantially separate issue at the Annual General Meeting.
The level of proxies lodged, together with the number for and against each resolution, will be announced once dealt with by a
show of hands at the meeting.

The Chairman of the Board will make every effort to ensure that the respective chairs of the Remuneration, Nomination and
Audit committees will be present at the Annual General Meeting and available to take relevant questions from the floor.

Going concern

The Board have reviewed and approved the Group’s budget for the financial year ending March 2003 and projections for future
years. After taking account of the cash flow implications, including proposed capital expenditure, and considering the availability
of borrowing facilities, the Board have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts of both the Group and
Company on a going concern basis.

Compliance
Throughout the year to 31 March 2002, the Group has, with the exception of the matters noted below, complied with the
provisions of the code. The exceptions arose because the Group did not gain entry to the London Stock Exchange until june
2001.

The only exceptions were that the Nomination and Remuneration committees were constituted with effect from the date of
admission to the London Stock Exchange.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue
in business,

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial staternents.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and Group and hence far taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

The Directors are also responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group’s website. Uncertainty regarding legal
requirements is compounded as information published on the internet is accessible in many countries with different legal
requirements relating to the preparation and dissemination of financial statements.




21 PHS Group plc

INDEPENDENT AUDITGRS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PHS GROUP PLC

We have audited the financial statements which comprise the Consolidated profit and loss account, Consolidated balance sheet,
Company balance sheet, Consolidated cash flow statement, Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses and the
related notes.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards are set out in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements,

United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority. :

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you i, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with
the financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding Directors’
remuneration and transactions is not disclosed. _

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or materiaf incansistencies with the financial statements. The other information comprises
only the Chairman’s staternent, Chief Executive’s review, Financial review, Remuneration report, Directors’ report and Corporate
governance statement.

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company or Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures,

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards Issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. it also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial staternents.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
31 March 2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared
jp.accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

WQQ =D

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Cardiff

10 June 2002
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 March 2002

Continuing
operations Exceptional  Year ended Year ended
before items and 31 March 31 March
exceptional  discontinued 2002 2001
items operations Total Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Tumovet 2
Continuing operations 114,665 - 114,665 94,429
Discontinued operations - 402 402 2,639
114,665 402 115,067 97,068
Net operating expenses 3
Continuing operations (81,096) - (81,096) (67,536)
Discontinued operations - (404) {404) (2,788)
(81,096} (404) (81,500) (70,324)
Operating profit/(loss) 2,3
Continuing operations 33,569 - 33,569 26,893
Discontinued operations - {2) 73] (149}
33,569 )] 33,567 26,744
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings 4 - (969) (969) -
Interest receivable and similar income 31 - 31 -
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (11,335) (3,638) (14,973) (30,386)
Profit/{Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 22,265 (4,609) 17,656 (3,642)
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities 7 787 300
Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 18,443 (3,342)
Dividends paid and proposed 8 (2,172) -
Retained profit/(loss) for the year 23 16,271 (3.342)
Earnings/(Loss) per share 9
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 4.18p (1.63p)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 4,18p (1.63p)

Continuing operations include the results of acquisitions made during the year. it is not practicable to determine the
post-acquisition results to the end of the year of acquisition, This is due ta the trade and assets of the companies or businesses
acquired being incorporated into the existing trade and assets of the Group and consequently, their results are not separately

identifiable post-acquisition.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

for the year ended 31 March 2002

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 31 March

2002 2001

£000 £000
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year 18,443 (3,342)
Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments - 36
Total recognised gains/(losses) relating to the year 18,443 (3,306)
Prior year adjustment — change in accounting policy - (154)
Total gains/(losses) recognised since the last financial statements 18,443 (3,460)
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BALANCE SHEETS

at 31 March 2002

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 10 307,990 278,398 - -
Tangible assets 11 26,894 24,570 - -
Investments 12 - - 312,586 200
334,884 302,968 312,586 200
Current assets
Stocks 13 2,701 2,243 - -
Debtors 14 34,135 21,711 5,182 1,630
Cash 9,418 488 873 108
46,254 24,442 6,055 1,738
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 15 {34,005) {22,339) (1,851) -
Net current assets 12,249 2,103 4,204 1,738
Total assets less current liabilities 347,133 305,071 316,790 1,938
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (67,963) (283,028) (67,931) -
Provisions for liabilitles and charges 19 - - (249) -
Accruals and deferred income 20 (35,251) (31,904) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) 2 243,919 (9,861) 248,610 1,938
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 51,705 202 51,705 202
Share premium account 23 187,724 1,718 187,724 1,718
Profit and loss account 23 4,490 (11,781} 9,181 i8
Equity shareholders’ funds/(deficit) 24 243,919 (9,861 248,610 1,938

The financial statements on pages 22 to 44 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2002 and were signed on its

behalf by:
P ) Cohen K Bland
Director Director
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CONSOUIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2002

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2002 2001

Notes £'000 £'000

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit 33,567 26,744
Depreciation 6,454 5,568
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (324) (123)
Increase in stocks (3) (432)
({Increase)/Decrease in debtors (5,444) 254
Increase/{Decrease) in creditors 1,671 {1,716)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 35,921 30,295
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 25 (38,457) (12,578)
Taxation paid (1,970) (97)
Capital expenditure 25 (7,950) (7,641)
Acquisitions and disposals 25 (17,911) (15,270}
Equity dividends paid (672) -
Cash outflow before financing (31,039) (5,291)
Financing 25 39,969 3,793
Increase/{Decrease) in cash 26 8,930 (1,498)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2002
1 Principal accounting policies

Basls of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in
the United Kingdom and, except for the treatment of the amortisation of goodwill described below, comply with the Companies
Act 1985. An explanation of this departure from the requirements of the Companies Act is given below.

A summary of the more important accounting policies is set out below.

New accounting standards
The Company and Group adopted two new accounting standards in the year, namely FRS 18 “Accounting policies” and FRS 19
“Deferred tax”.

FRS 18 "Accounting policies” was fully implemented during the year. All existing accounting policies were reviewed in detail
and considered most appropriate to the circumstances of both the Company and Group. Consequently, no revision of accounting
policies was necessary, other than the implementation of FRS 19 “Deferred tax” as described below.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts shown in the financial statements. Actual amounts could differ from
those estimates.

Basls of consolidation
The financial statements have been consolidated under the acquisition accounting method.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from presenting its own profit and loss account as perrmitted by
Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985.

Income recognition

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold and the rentals receivable on operating leases (as described further below),
exclusive of valued added tax.

Operating leases

i) As fessor

Assets on hire to customers are capitalised and depreciated as noted below. Rentals receivable are credited to the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis, over the lease term. Income is recognised from the day of inception of the lease. Amounts received
in advance are shown in the balance sheet as deferred income.

ii) As lessee
Lease payments are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Research and development
Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred,

Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses that are directly attributable to
the acquisition.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic
lives of the assets concerned. The principal annual rates of depreciation used are as follows:

Freehold land - Not depreciated
Freehold property - 50 years
Short leasehold property - Over the lease term
Equipment installed at customers’ premises - 1 to 5 years
Other equipment and vehicles - 3 to 10 years
Tooling - 4 years
Goodwill

Purchased goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired.

Goodwill in respect of acquisitions made is shown as an asset and, in accordance with FRS 10 “Intangible assets and goodwill”,
each acquisition is assessed to determine the useful economic life of the business and the goodwill. For the types of business
acquired by the Group to date, the Board considers that the goodwill is an inseparable part of the total value of the relevant
business, These are service businesses that are not subject to high volatility in fashions or markets and demand for these services is
likely to continue for the foreseeable future. Such businesses, if properly managed, should grow in value over the years and hence
neither the value of the business nor the goodwill has a measurable economic life. Where it is considered that the value of the
business or its goodwill does have a measurable economic life, any related goodwill would be amortised through the profit and loss
account by equal instalments over such useful economic life, In this context, the useful economic life of the businesses
and goodwill are reviewed annually and revised where appropriate.

In the event that the useful economic life does not exceed 20 years, goodwill would be subject to an |mpa|rment review at the
end of the year of acquisition and at any other time when the Directors believe that impairment may have occurred. Where the
goodwill is assigned a useful economic life that is in excess of 20 years or Is indefinite, the value of the relevant businesses and
goodwill is assessed for impairment against carrying values on an annual basis in accordance with FRS 11 “Impairment of fixed
assets and goodwill”. Any impairment is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises.

The Group has acquired a number of businesses in the year as detailed in note 29. The Directors have reviewed these
acquisitions and consider that these businesses and the associated goodwill have an indefinite useful economic life and the goodwill
is therefore not being amortised.
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued}

This treatment represents a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985, which does not permit an indefinite
useful economic life. The departure is, however, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the financial statements to give a true
and fair view in accordance with applicable accounting standards. If this goodwill were amortised over a 20-year period, the profit
before tax for the year ended 31 March 2002 would be reduced by £14,682,000 (2001: loss before tax would be increased by
£13,500,000), with a corresponding reduction in reserves and intangible assets,

Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which takes account of any provision necessary to recognise damage
and obsolescence. Cost is based on a FIFO measure and includes labour, materials, transport and directly attributable overheads.

Financial liabilities and issue costs

All borrowings are initially stated at the fair value of the consideration received after deduction of issue costs. Issue costs are charged
to the profit and loss account together with the coupon, as finance costs, on a constant yield basis over the term of the borrowings,
or over a shorter period where the lender can require earlier payment.

Financial instruments
Interest rate swap agreements are used to minimise interest rate exposures. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of these

derivatives are recognised as adjustments to interest expense over the period of the contracts. Other financial instruments are held
on a historical cost basis.

Finance leases

Leasing agreements {(including equivalent hire purchase agreements) which transfer to the Company substantially all the benefits
and risks of ownership of an asset are treated as if the asset had been purchased outright. The assets are included in fixed assets and
the capital element of the leasing commitments is shown as obligations under finance leases. The lease rentals are treated as
consisting of capital and interest elements. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations and the interest
element is charged against profit in proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding. Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over the useful economic lives of the equivalent owned assets or period of lease if shorter.

Deferred taxation

FRS 19 "Deferred tax” has been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. The standard requires full provision to be
made for deferred tax arising from timing differences between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and
their recognition in tax computations, where future payment or receipt is more likely than not to occur. In adepting FRS 19, the
Group has chosen not to discount deferred tax assets and liabilities. The prior year adjustment required by this change in
accounting policy is nil, as explained in note 7.

Foreign exchange
Transactions expressed in fareign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign

currency assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Any differences are taken to the
profit and loss account.

Government grants
Grants in respect of expenditure on fixed assets are included as deferred income and recognised in the profit and loss account over

the expected useful economic lives of the related assets. Revenue based grants are recognised in the profit and loss account in the
period to which they relate.

Pension costs

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for eligible employees. Pension costs represent contributions payable to
the scheme for the year.
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2 Turnover and segmental reporting

An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set out below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£000 £000
Continuing operations

Rental (operating leases) 102,428 87,031
Sales 12,237 7,398
114,665 94,429

Discontinued operations
Rental {operating leases} 402 2,639
115,067 97,068

An analysis of the Group's turnover and operating profit, by class of business, is set out below:

Year ended 31 March 2002

Year ended 31 March 2001

Operating Operating
Turnover  profit/(loss) Profit Tumover profit/{ioss) Profit
£000 £000 margin £000 £000 margin
Continuing operations
PHS Washrooms: Washroom services 83,785 39,970 47.7% 67,226 32,605 48.5%
PHS Treadsmart: Dust mat services 13,524 3,370 24.9% 12,578 2,567 20.4%
PHS Greenleaf: Live and replica plants 14,065 1,984 14.1% 13,496 1,685 12.5%
PHS Waterlogic: Point of use water dispensers 3,291 862 26.2% 1,129 (21) {1.9)%
114,665 46,186 40.3% 94,429 36,836 39.0%
Central costs
Normal - {11,712) - (9,672)
Exceptional - (905) - 271
114,665 33,569 29.3% 94,429 26,893 28.5%
Discontinued operations 402 {(2) 2,639 (149)
115,067 33,567 29.2% 97,068 26,744 27.6%

Turnover and operating prefit/(loss) from continuing operations are principally earned and sourced from the United Kingdom.

Turnover and operating loss from discontinued operations relate solely to the operations of PHS Inc and PHS Protector BV

(see note 4).

Exceptional central costs comprise non-recurring expenditure on the integration of acquisitions into the Group’s existing operations

including redundancy costs, payments for termination of leases and other restructuring costs.

An analysis of the Group's net assets at 31 March, by class of business, is set out below:

2002 2001

Restated

£'000 £000

PHS Washrooms: Washroom services 269,222 244,527
PHS Treadsmart: Dust mat services 14,221 13,499
PHS Greenleaf: Live and replica plants 16,479 16,093
PHS Waterlogic: Point of use water dispensers 12,710 5193
312,632 279,312
Less: Group net debt {69,536) (289,086)
Less: Proposed dividends (1,500) -
Add: Taxation 2,323 (87)
243919 (9,861)

Net assets are principally located in the United Kingdom.
The Directors have reviewed the basis on which net assets are apportioned and revised the method of allocation of certain
central assets and liabilities. Consequently, the comparative balances have been restated.
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3 Net operating expenses and operating profit
An analysis of the Group’s net operating expenses is set out below:

Year ended 31 March 2002 Year ended 31 March 2001
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued

operations operations Total operations operations Total

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Change in stocks 39 (42) (3) (450) 18 (432)
Own work capitalised {1,280) - (1,280) (1,052) - (1,052)
Raw materials and consumables 12,875 62 12,937 9,469 134 9,603
Employee costs (Note 5) 40,844 251 41,095 34,960 1,712 36,672
Depreciation 6,427 27 6,454 5,344 224 5,568
Other operating charges 221N 106 22,297 19,265 700 19,965
81,096 404 81,500 67,536 2,788 70,324

Included within depreciation above is £40,000 (2001: £55,000) of depreciation on assets held under hire purchase leases.
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£000 £'000

Rentals under operating leases:
Land and buildings 762 707
Plant and machinery _ 3,706 3,633
Other assets 422 49

Fees paid to auditors:

Audit services (Company: £nil) 75 49
Other services 95 27
Property rents receivable (108) (95)
Grant income (80) (80}
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (324) (123)

In addition to the amounts noted above, fees of £723,000 (2001: £121,000) have been paid to the Group’s auditors for
non-audit services. £173,000 (£121,000) of these fees were paid and capitalised within goodwill in respect of acquisitions during
the year and £550,000 (2001: £nil) were paid and written off against the share premium account in respect of the flotation.

4 Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings
During the year, the Group disposed of its investments in the entire issued share capital of both PHS Inc and PHS Protector BV.
PHS Inc is a US-registered company and PHS Protector BV a Belgian-registered company; both companies operated sclely in their
domestic markets.

Total consideration received for the companies was £357,000 (net of selling expenses of £220,000). Net assets disposed of were
£1,326,000 (including purchased goodwill of £994,000}. This generated a loss on disposal of discontinued operations of £969,000.
The taxation impact of this loss on disposal is £nil.




29 PHS Group plc

5 Directors and employees
Directors’ emoluments for the year comprise:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2002 2001

£000 £000

Salaries for management services 293 271
Fees 1”71 78
Other emoluments {including benefits in kind) 20 19
484 368

Contributions to money purchase pension schemes 60 28
544 396

In addition to the emoluments shown above, fees of £6,000 (2001: £33,000) were paid to Charterhouse Development Capital
Limited in respect of the services of § D Simpson and L Giacomotto, both of whom resigned on 5 June 2001,
Further details of Directors’ emoluments and of the highest paid Director are given in the Remuneration report on pages 16

and 17 which forms part of these financial statements.

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2002 2001
Number Number
Administration 391 330
Sales 385 325
Service 1,355 1,212
2,11 1,867

Employee costs for the above persons were:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 36,969 32,772
Social security costs 3,381 3,154
Other pension costs 745 746
41,095 36,672
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6 Interest payable and similar charges

Year ended Year ended

Interest before 31 March 31 March
exceptionat Exceptional 2002 2001
iterns items Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000

In respect of borrowings repaid in the year
Interest payable an secured senior debt 3,714 - 3,714 14,941
Interest payable on unsecured subordinated loan notes 3,359 - 3,559 13,130
Amortisation of issue costs 644 2,576 3,220 2,244
Exceptional interest rate swap cancellation fee - 1,062 1,062 -
7,917 3,638 11,555 30,315

Other interest payable

On bank loans and overdrafts 3,050 - 3,050 39
Amortisation of issue costs 113 - 113 -
On acquisition loan notes 251 - 251 -
On finance and hire purchase agreements 4 - 4 32
3,418 - 3,418 71
11,335 3,638 14,973 30,386

Bank interest payable and receivable have been netted off to reflect the substance of the Group's banking arrangements.

No interest has been capitalised during the year (2001: £nil).

The exceptional items were £2,576,000 in respect of the write-off of previously unamortised issue costs related to the borrowings
repaid in the year and £1,062,000 for the cancellation of an interest rate swap.

7 Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
{a) Analysis of credit in the year
The taxation credit is made up as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£/000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 4,043 -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (27) (300)
4,016 (300)
Defarred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences (4,803) -
(787) (300)

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge/(credit) for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%). The differences are explained below:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£000 £'000
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 17,656 (3,642)
Profit/(Loss) multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2001: 30%) 5,297 (1,093)
Effects of:
Temporary differences between taxable and accounting profit:
Accelerated capital allowances (1,562) (1,064}
Losses - 2,232
Prior year credit (27) (300}
Permanent differences 308 (75)

Current tax charge/(credit) for the year (note 7(a))} 4,016 (300)
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7 Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities (continued)
The deferred tax asset/(liabllity) is made up as follows:

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £/000 £'000 £'000
Accelerated depreciation over capital allowances 3,505 - - -
Capital gains/revaluations (249) - (249) -
Tax losses carried forward 1,545 - - -
4,801 - (249) -

The movemernit on the deferred tax asset/(liability) is as follows:
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 1 April - - - -
Transferred in from acquired company (2) - - -
Profit and loss account 4,803 - (249) -
At 31 March 4,801 - (249) -

At 31 March 2001, the Group did not expect to have sufficient taxable profits from which the reversal of the underlying timing
differences could be deducted. This was because the Group was highly geared and interest costs were expected to continue in
excess of any taxable profits, Since flotation, the Group's capital structure has changed and the underlying timing differences are
now more likely than not to reverse. Consequently, the adoption of FRS 19 “"Deferred tax” does not impact the results for the
year ended 31 March 2001,

8 Dividends paid and proposed

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£'000 £'000

Equity — Ordinary shares of 10p each
Interim dividends paid: 0.13p (2001: nil) per ordinary share 672 -
Final dividends proposed: 0.29p (2001: nil) per ordinary share 1,500 -
2172 -

There are no arrangements under which any shareholder has agreed to waive an entitlement to receive dividends.

9 Earnings/{Loss) per share
Basic and diluted eamings/(loss) per share has been calculated in accordance with FRS 14 “Earnings per share”. The data used in
the calculations is as follows:

Basic EPS Dilutions  Diluted EPS
Year ended 31 March 2002
Profit after taxation (£'000) 18,443 - 18,443
Weighted average number of shares in issue (‘000 shares) 440,847 191 441,038
Earnings per share 4.18p 4,18p
Year ended 31 March 2001
Loss aftet taxation (£'Q00) (3,342) - (3,342)
Weighted average number of shares in issue (‘000 shares) 204,526 - 204,526
Loss per share (1.63p) (1.63p)

The adjustments between the calculation of basic and diluted EPS reflect the grant of share options under the Group’s sharesave
scheme in 2001,
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10 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
Goodwill

Group £/000

Cost and net book value

At 1 Aprit 2001 278,398

Adjustments to prior year provisional fair values (168)
Additions 30,754

Reduction on the sale of subsidiaries (see note 4) {994)
At 31 March 2002 307,990

Additions to purchased goodwill represent the purchase of goodwill associated with the Group's acquisition of subsidiary

undertakings and unincorporated businesses during the year, as detailed in note 29.
Goodwill arising on a number of the acquisitions made in the year can be determined only on a provisional basis because the
fair values of the purchase consideration and net assets acquired cannot yet be finally determined.

Adjustments to prior year provisional fair values comprise revisions to the fair values of both the net assets acquired and

consideration paid recognised at 31 March 2001. The revisions to the fair values of the net assets relate to alignment of accounting
policies with acquisitions undertaken in the latter part of the year to 31 March 2001 where final information was not available at
the time of preparing the financial statements for that year.
During the year ended 31 March 2002, the Group acquired a number of businesses. The Directors have reviewed these
acquisitions along with the Group’s underlying business and in accordance with the policy described in note 1, consider that these
businesses and associated goodwill have an indefinite useful economic life and consequently the goodwill is not being amortised,

11 Tangible fixed assets

Equipment
Short installed at Other

Frechold leasehold customers’ equipment

property property premises and vehicles Tooling Total
Group £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 7 April 2001 11,100 583 18,432 9,805 2178 42,098
Additions 98 275 6,028 1,678 383 8,462
Disposals (433) (20} (3,747 (1,304) (22) (5,526)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 548 - 338 386 - 1,272
Sale of subsidiary undertakings - (8) (615) (293) - (916)
At 31 March 2002 11,313 830 20,436 10,272 2,539 45,390
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2001 it 113 (10,960) (4,829) (1,515) {17,528)
Charge for the year a1 (77) {4,233) (1,732) (301) (6,454)
Disposals - 19 3,743 1,123 22 4,907
Sale of subsidiary undertakings - 1 387 191 - 579
At 31 March 2002 (222) (170) (11,063) (5,247) (1,794) (18,496)
Net book value
At 31 March 2002 11,091 660 9,373 5,025 745 26,894
At 31 March 2001 10,989 470 7472 4,976 663 24,570

The net book value of assets held under hire purchase leases is £111,000 (2001: £151,000).
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12 Investments

Shares in Loans to

subsidiary subsidiary
uvndertakings undertakings Total
Company £000 £000 £000

Cost and net book value

At 1 April 2001 200 - 200
Additicns - 312,386 312,386
At 31 March 2002 200 312,386 312,586

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are set out below. The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all
subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length. A full list of subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2002 will

be annexed to the Company’s next Annual Return.

Name Class of capital Proportion of shares held

Principal activity

Personnel Hygiene Services Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Provision of workplace
services at customer premises

PHS Western Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (direct)

Intermediate hoiding company

PHS All Clear Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Clinical waste collection and disposal

PHS Holdings Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (direct)

Intermediate holding company

£1 preference shares 100% (indirect)

PHS Investments Limited Class “A” 10p ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Intermediate holding company

ClaSS ”B", Hcﬂ' HD.H and l.rEu'
1 p ordinary shares

100% (indirect)

Companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

13 Stocks
2002 2001
Group £'000 £000
Raw materials 225 219
Finished goods 2,476 2,024
2,701 2,243
14 Debtors
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£'000 £/000 £000 £000
Falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 26,477 19,940 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 5,023 1,630
Other debtors 128 188 14 -
Recoverable deferred tax 575 - - -
Prepayments and accrued income 2,055 1,583 145 -
29,235 21,71 5,182 1,630
Falling due after more than one year:
Recoverable deferred tax 4,226 - - -
Prepayments and accrued income 674 - - -
34,135 21,711 5,182 1,630
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank and other borrowings (see note 17) 10,9 6,546 - -
Trade creditors 6,597 5,841 - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 125 -
Dividends payable 1,500 - 1,500 -
Other creditors 7,967 6,558 223 -
Corporation tax 2,478 87 3 -
Other taxation and social security 4,472 3,307 - -
34,005 22,339 1,851 -
16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank and other borrowings (see note 17) 67,963 283,028 67,931 -
17 Bank and other borrowings
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Secured senior debt - 5,938 - -
Deferred consideration loan notes 10,883 565 - -
Obligations under hire purchase leases 108 43 - -
10,991 6,546 - -
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Bank loan 67,931 - 67,931 -
Secured senior debt - 140,085 - -
Unsecured subordinated loan notes - 142,902 - -
Obligations under hire purchase leases 32 41 - -

67,963 283,028 67,931 -

The unsecured subordinated loan notes and secured senior debt were repaid in full at the time of the flotation in June 2001.

The bank loan and deferred consideration loan notes are secured by a guarantee and debenture dated 29 june 2001.

Under the terms of the guarantee the security granted by the Group can be summarised as follows:

Asset Nature of Security Value of security
All freehold and leasehold land and buildings held at 29 June 2001 First legal mortgage Unlimited
All freehold and leasehold land acquired subsequent to 29 June 2001 First fixed charge Unlimited
All plant and machinery First fixed charge Unlimited
All book debts, securities, goodwill, uncalled capital, intellectual property rights and cash First fixed charge Unlimited
All other assets Floating charge Unlimited

The bank loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin that may vary between 0.9% and 1%. The debt is repayable in full in June 2006.
The deferred consideration loan notes were issued as partial consideration for a number of the Group’s acquisitions made in the
two years to 31 March 2002. The ultimate redemption date of each loan note falls within either 2003 or 2004 but each is capable

of redemption at the option of the holder within cne year of the balance sheet date.

Of the total balance of deferred consideration loan notes, £1,246,000 pays interest at 1.5% below LIBOR, £7,655,000 at 1%

below LIBOR and the remaining £1,982,000 at a fixed annual rate of 5%.

Hire purchase leases are secured on the assets under lease and bear interest at an implicit rate of between 7% and 8% per annum.
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18 Financial instruments
The principal financing and treasury exposures facing the Group relate to working capital management, the financing of acquisitions
and tangible fixed assets, the management of interest rate positions and the investment of surplus cash.

Prior to the flotation, the Group generally followed a strategy of using long-term borrowings in specific circumstances, including
subordinated unsecured loan notes and senior debt facilities, to finance its acquisitions. Since the flotation, the strategy has been
to use internally-generated cash and long-term bank loans to finance its acquisitions,

The Group’s functional and reporting currency is sterfing, Since the Group sold its investments in both overseas subsidiaries early
in the year and has little trade in other currencies, the currency exposures faced are minimal, The Group has a continuing strategy
of not holding any hedging for foreign exchange management.

The Group borrows at both fixed and floating rates of interest and has the objective of managing interest rate risks. The Group
hedged its risks in respect of the borrowings that were repaid as a result of the flotation through the use of interest rate swaps.

The Group has not subsequently hedged its risks because in the current environment of low gearing and high interest cover, the
Directors consider that the level of interest rate risk is acceptable.

The Group also has financial instruments in the form of short-term debtors and creditors that arise in the normal course of

business. Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures that foflow.

{a) Interest rate and currericy risk profile of financial liabilities and assets
The fixed and floating interest rate profile of the Group’s financial liabilities and assets {after taking account of an interest rate swap
operating at 31 March 2001 that converted £90 million of floating rate to fixed rate borrowings) was as follows:

31 March 2002 31 March 2001
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
rate rate Total rate rate Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets - 9,418 9,418 - 488 488
Financial liabilities {2,122) (76,832) {78,954) (232986) {56,588) (289,574)

(2,122) (67,414) (69,536) (232,986) (56,100)  (289,086)
Financial liabilities and assets are primarily denominated in sterling.

(b) Interest rate profile of borrowings and finance feases
The interest profile of the borrowings and finance leases is set out in note 17. The Group receives interest on its cash balances at
floating rates of interest linked to money market rates.

The weighted average interest rate and weighted average pericd for which the rate is fixed, on the fixed rate financial liabilities is
shawn below:

Fixed rate financial Fixed rate financial
liahilities weighted liabilities weighted Fixed rate financial Fixed rate financial
average period for average period for liabilities weighted liabilities weighted
which rate Is fixed which rate is fixed average interest rate average interest rate
2002 2001 2002 2001
Years Years % %
Sterling borrowings 0.7 9.3 5.1 8.7

The weighted average period is based on the maturity of the respective debt, but the fixed rate borrowings at 31 March 2001 were
repaid on flotation. The calculations at 31 March 2001 also take account of the interest rate swap used at that time to manage the
Group’s interest rate risk.

() Borrowing facilities and liquidity risk
The Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 March 2002, consisting of a £6,542,000 working capital facility
{2001: £7,000,000), and an auxiliary facility of £17,547,000 (2001: acquisition facilities of £1,115,000).

These undrawn caommitted borrowing facilities expire on 7 June 2004,
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18 Financial instruments continued
(d} Fair values of financial Kabilities and financial assets

The following table provides a comparison by category of the carrying values and fair values of the Group's financial fiabilities
and financial assets at 31 March. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length

transaction between informed and willing parties (other than a forced or liquidated sale} and excludes accrued interest,

The fair values of short-term borrowings and cash approximates to the carrying value because of the short maturity of these
investments. The fair value of long-term borrowings approximates to the carrying value after excluding the accrued interest and,
in respect of fixed rate borrowings, discounting the expected cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

31 March 2002 31 March 2001
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Primary finandal instruments held or issued to finance
the Group’s operations
Short-term borrowings (10,991) (10,991) (6,546) (6,546)
Long-term borrowings (67,963) (67,963) (257,339) (251,592)
Cash at bank and in hand 9418 2418 488 488
(69.536) (69,536) (263,397) (257,650)
Derivative financial instruments held to manage
the interest rate profile
Interest rate swaps - - - (2,220)

A fee of £1,062,000 was paid during the year to cancel the interest rate swap.

(e) Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s financial liabilities, excluding short-term trade creditors and accruals,

at 31 March was as follows:

31March 2002

Within 1 year Between Between In 5 years
orondemand 1and2years 2and 5 years or more Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans o - - 67,931 - 67,931
Deferred consideration loan notes 10,883 - - - 10,883
Obligations under hire purchase agreements 108 32 - - 140
10,991 32 67,931 - 78,954
31 March 2001

Within 1 year Between Between In 5 years
orondemand 1and2Zyears 2and 5 years or more Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Secured senior debt borrowings 5,938 11,597 56,967 71,521 146,023
Unsecured subordinated loan notes - - - 142,902 142,902
Deferred consideration loan notes 565 - - - 565
Obligations under hire purchase agreements 43 41 - - 84
6,546 11,638 56,967 214,423 289,574

(f) Currency risks

All assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2002 are denominated in sterling. At 31 March 2001, the Group had assets and
liabilities denominated in US dollars and Belgian francs of £1,251,000 and £694,000 respectively.

19 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions for liabilities and charges arising in the Company are wholly in respect of deferred taxation as explained in note 7.
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20 Accruals and deferred income

2002 2001
Group £000 £000
Accruals 3,342 5,019
Deferred income 31,909 26,885

35,251 31,904

Deferred income represents the unearned proportion of rentals receivable from customers in advance and will normally be credited
to turnover within one year.

21 Pensions
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for eligible employees. Contributions by the Group are charged to the profit
and loss account as incurred. The total pensions costs for the year are shown in note 5.

22 Called up share capital

2002 2001
£'000 £'000
Authorised
695,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each (2001: 20,500,000 ordinary shares of 1p each) 69,500 205
Allotted, issued and fully paid
517,045,452 ordinary shares of 10p each (2001: 20,202,020 ordinary shares of 1p each) 51,705 202

The following events occurred during the year that affected the share capital of the Company:

* Every ten of the 20,202,020 ordinary shares of 1p that were in issue were consolidated into cne ordinary share of 10p;

* The authorised share capital was increased from £205,000 to £69,500,000 by the creaticn of an additional 692,950,000 ordinary
shares of 10p;

* A bonus issuF; of 401 for 4 ordinary shares was made to the existing sharehclders, funded by the capitalisation of £20,253,000
from the share premium account;

» 312,500,000 new ordinary shares were issued in accordance with a global offer to employees and institutional investors.
The price of each ordinary share was fixed at 80p for this issue so no market price was available.

At 31 March 2002, the following options had been granted and remain outstanding in respect of the Company’s 10p ordinary
shares under the Company’s share option schemes.

Date Number of

Year Exercise normally 10p ordinary

granted price  exercisable shares

Savings related share option scheme 2001 71p  2004-2005 2,292,706

Discretionary share option scheme 2001 88p 20042011 1,136,581
23 Statement of movement on reserves

Group Company

Share Profit Share Profit

premium and loss premium and loss

account account account account

£000 £'000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2001 1,718 {11,781) 1,718 18

Premium on issue of shares 218,750 - 218,750 -

Write-off of expenses and commission on the public issue of shares (12,491) - (12,491) -

Bonus issue of shares (20,253 - (20,253) -

Retained profit for the financial year - 16,271 - 9,163

At 31 March 2002 187,724 4,490 187,724 92,181

A profit of £11,335,000 on ordinary activities after taxation arose in the Company (2001: profit £23,000).
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24 Reconciliation of movements in sharecholders’ funds

2002 2001
Group £'000 £000
Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 18,443 (3,342)
Dividends paid and proposed (2,172) -
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year 16,271 (3,342)
New share capital subscribed 250,000 40
Write-off of expenses and commission on the public issue of shares (12,491) -
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year - 36
253,780 (3,266)
Opening shareholders’ funds (9,861) (6,595)
Closing shareholders’ funds 243,919 (9,861)
25 Analysis of other headings in the cash flow statement
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2002 2001
£000 £000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 31 -
Interest paid on secured senicr debt (7,708) {12,508)
Interest paid on unsecured subordinated loan notes {25,254) -
Exceptional interest rate swap cancellation fee {1,062) -
Interest paid on bank loans and overdrafts (3,022) a7
Issue costs incurred in respect of borrowings subsequently paid (416) -
Issue costs incurred in respect of outstanding bank loans {(771) (16)
Interest paid on acquisition loan notes (251) (5}
Interest paid on finance and hire purchase agreements (4) (32)
(38,457) (12,578)
Capital expenditure
Purchase of equipment installed at customers’ premises (6,028) {5,147)
Purchase of other tangible fixed assets (2,865) {2,940)
Proceed:s of sale of tangible fixed assets 943 446
(7,950) (7,641}
Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisition of subsidiaries and other businesses (18,071) {14,919}
Acquisition expenses (720) (326)
Net cash/(overdraft) acquired 684 (25)
Disposal of subsidiaries 577 -
Disposal expenses (220) -
Net cash disposed (161) -
(17.911) (15,270)
Financing
Receipt of bank loans 68,589 8,448
Receipt of secured senior debt 2,700 -
Repayment of secured senior debt (146,085) {(4,500)
Repayment of unsecured subordinated loan notes (122,655) -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 250,000 40
Expenses and commission paid in respect of the issue of ordinary shares (12,491) -
Repayment of capital element of finance and hire purchase agreements (89) (195}
39,969 3,793
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26 Movements in net debt

At 1 April Acquisitions  Other non cash At 31 March
2001 Cash flow  and disposals changes 2002
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 488 8,930 - - 9,418
Debt due within one year
Secured senior debt (5,938) 6,000 - (62) -
Deferred consideration loan notes {565) 283 — (10,601) (10,883)
Obligations under hire purchase leases (43) 89 (145) (9) {108)
(6,546) 6,372 (145) (10,672) (10,991)
Debts due after more than one year
Bank loan - (67,818) - (113)  (67,931)
Secured senicr debt {140,085) 141,795 - (1,710) -
Unsecured subordinated loan notes (142,902) 144,350 - (1,448) -
Obligations under hire purchase leases 41 - - 9 (32)
{283,028) 218,327 - (3,262) (67,963)
Net debt (289,086) 233,629 {145) (13,934) (69,536)

27 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2002 2001

£000 £000
Increase/{Decrease) in cash during the year 8,930 (1,498)
Cash flow from decrease/(increase) in debt and lease financing 224,699 (3,778)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 233,629 (5,276)
Hire purchase leases acquired with subsidiaries (145) (46)
Changes in net debt resulting from non-cash changes (13,934) (18,356)
Movement in net debt in the year 219,550 (23,678)
Net debt at T April (289,086) (265,408)
Net debt at 31 March (69,536) (289,086)

The trade and assets of acquisitions made during the year are arnalgamated into the existing trade of the Group and therefore their
effects on the reported cash flows cannct be determined.

Non-cash changes comprise £3,333,000 of amortisation of debt issue costs and £10,601,000 of deferred consideration loan
notes issued as partial consideration for acquired businesses.

28 Capital commitments
Neither the Group nor Company had capital commitments at 31 March 2002 (2001: £nil).
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29 Acquisitions

During the year, the Group has acquired the entire issued share capital of a number of companies as well as the trade and net
assets of a number of unincorporated businesses. The acquisitions that the Directors believe to have been individually material

to the Group are identified below:

Total

Consideration

Acquired entity Nature Acquisition date £°000
Dee-esS Direct Supplies Limited Company 6 April 2001 2,910
Personnel Hygiene Services (NI} Limited Company 25 May 2001 2,012
Doop Services Limited Company 29 June 2001 2,234
Elite Management Systems Limited Company 5 October 2001 5,223
The UK Water Group Limited Company 19 December 2001 6,256
Other companies and businesses 11,515
Total for all acquisitions 30,150

For each material acquisition, a table showing the book value, fair value adjustments and fair values of each class of asset and liability

acquired is provided. The tables also analyse the fair value of the consideration paid and state the purchased goodwill arising.

Alignment of
Book value accounting policies Fair value
Dee-esS Direct Supplies Limited £/000 £000 £/000
Tangible fixed assets 504 (9 495
Stocks 34 - 34
Debtors 413 (an 402
Cash 394 - 394
Total assets 1,345 (20) 1,325
Bank overdraft (350) - (350)
Other creditors (558) 21) (579)
Net assets/(liabilities) 437 41 396
Purchased goodwill 2,514
Consideration 2,910
Satisfied by
Cash 2,289
Loan notes 539
Acquisition expenses 82
2,910

Dee-esS Direct Supplies Limited made a profit after tax of £281,000 from 1 April 2000 to the date of acquisition and a profit after

tax of £225,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, provision against

irrecoverable debtor balances and recognition of fiabifities.
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29 Acquisitions continued

Alignment of

Book value accounting policies Fair value
Personnel Hygiene Services (NI) Limited £000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 357 (172) 185
Stocks 57 N 6
Debtors 230 Q) 220
Cash 278 - 278
Total assets 922 (233) 689
Creditors (423) 2 421)
Net assets/(liabilities) 499 (231 268
Purchased goodwill 1,744
Consideration 2,012
Satisfied by
Loan notes 1,982
Acquisition expenses 30

2,012

Personnel Hygiene Services (N1) Limited made a profit after tax of £150,000 from 1 July 2000 to the date of acquisition and a profit

after tax of £10,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset and stock recognition, depreciation, lessor

accounting on operating leases and provision against irrecoverable debtor balances.

Alignment of
Book value accounting policies Fair value
Doop Services Limited £000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 170 39 81
Stocks 19 - 19
Debtors 254 3 251
Cash 96 - 96
Total assets 539 (92) 447
Bank overdraft (35) - 3%
Creditors (362) (31 (393)
Net assets/(liabilities) 142 (123) 19
Purchased goodwill 2,215
Consideration 2,234
Satisfied by
Cash 130
Loan notes 2,047
Acquisition expenses 57
2,234

Doop Services Limited made a loss after tax of £27,000 from 1 January 2001 to the date of acquisition and a profit after tax of

£160,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, provision against

irrecoverable debtor balances and recognition of liabilities.



42 PHS Group plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

29 Acquisitions continued

Alignment of

Book value accounting policies Fair value
Elite Management Systems Limited £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets 69 31 38
Stocks 69 (56) 13
Debtors 300 (66} 234
Total assets 438 (153) 285
Bank overdraft (2) - (2)
Creditors (397) (768) {1,159}
Net assets/(liabilities) 45 921) (876)
Purchased goodwill 6,099
Consideration 5223
Satisfied by
Cash 44
Loan notes 4,268
Deferred consideration 835
Acquisition expenses 76
5,223

Elite Management Systems Limited made a profit after tax of £134,000 from 1 April 2001 to the date of acquisition and a profit

after tax of £128,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, lessor accounting
on operating leases, accounting for deferred income, provision against irrecoverable debtor balances and recognition of liabilities.

The deferred consideration is to be satisfied by the issue of further loan notes.

Alignment of

Book value accounting policies Fair value
The UK Water Group Limited £'000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets 636 (272) 364
Stocks 415 - 415
Debtors 782 (8) 774
Cash 81 - 81
Total assets 1,914 (280) 1,634
Creditors (1,448) 474) {1,922)
Net assets/(liabilitles) 466 (754) (288)
Purchased goodwill 6,544
Consideration 6,256
Satisfied by
Cash 6,150
Acquisition expenses 106
6,256

The UK Water Group Limited made a profit after tax of £23,000 from 1 February 2001 to the date of acquisition and a profit after

tax of £241,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, lessor accounting
on operating leases, accounting for deferred income, provision against irrecoverable debtor balances and recognition of liabilities.
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29 Acquisitions continued

Alignment of
Book value accounting policies Fair value
Other acquisitions £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets 178 (69} 109
Stocks 181 (77} 104
Debtors 943 (170) 773
Cash 260 - 260
Total assets 1,562 (316) 1,246
Bank overdraft (38) - (38)
Creditors (1,288) {43) (1,331)
Net assets/(liabilities) 236 (359) (123)
Purchased goodwill 11,638
Consideration 11,515
Satisfied by
Cash 8,879
Loan notes 1,501
Deferred consideration 808
Acquisition expenses 327
11,515

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, lessor accounting on
operating leases, accounting for deferred income, provision against irrecoverable debtor balances and recognition of liabilities.
The deferred consideration is al! to be satisfied by the payment of cash.

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents in respect of each acquisition is provided below:

Personnel Elite )

Hygiene Doop Management The UK

Services Services Systems Water Group

(ND) Lvd Limited Limited Limited Others Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash consideration
(including acquisition expenses) 30 187 120 6,256 9,206 18,170
Cash at bank and
in hand acquired 278 96 - 81 260 1,109
Bank overdraft acquired - (35) (2) - (38) (425)
Net outflow of cash
and cash equivalents 308 248 118 6,337 9428 18,854

In addition to the above, £621,000 was paid in respect of acquisitions made in prior years. This was mainly as a result of the
conversion of loan notes or the realisation of deferred consideration,
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30 Operating lease commitments
At 31 March the Group was committed to making the following annual payments during the next year in respect of non-cancellable
operating leases:

2002 2001
£/000 £000
Land and buildings
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 14 18
Within two 1o five years 289 121
After five years 491 637
794 776
Other
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 296 439
Within two to five years 3,751 2,855
After five years 13 -
4,160 3,294

31 Ultimate controlling party
From the start of the year until the flotation on 29 june 2001, the ultimate controlling party of both the Company and Group was
a series of Funds managed by Charterhouse General Partners (VI) Limited.

32 Related party transactions
Where appropriate the Company and Group have taken advantage of the exemption available not to disclose any related party
transactions and balances with other 90% owned, or greater, Group companies for the financial period.

Of the subordinated unsecured loan notes that were in issue untii their redemption at the time of the flotation, £117,583,000
were in the favour of Charterhouse General Partners (V1) Limited, £299,000 in the favour of Fund Nominees Limited, £3,023,000 in
the favour of Charterhouse Development Limited, £1,250,000 in favour of the executive directors and £500,000 in favour of other
senior management. During the year, interest of £3,559,000 has accrued and been paid in respect of these loan notes. These loan
notes were redeemed at par along with interest accrued at the time of the flotation in June 2001.

33 Post balance sheet events

The Group has made four acquisitions since the year-end, purchasing the entire issued share capital of Teacrate ple for cash
consideration of £13.7m (with additional consideration of approximately £5m to be paid in the future based on an earn-out
arrangement), the entire issued share capital of The Well Corporation Limited for cash consideration of £4.4m and two smaller
acquisitions for a consideration of £2m. These acquisitions were partly funded by borrowing an additional £18m through our
existing facilities (as described in note 18),

Teacrate plc takes the Group into a fifth class of operations, being crate rental. The Well Corporation operated in the
collection and disposal of bulk clinical waste and is being integrated into the existing operations in this area within the
washroom services division.

The Group has also negotiated an increase of £33m in the available borrowing facilities on the same interest terms as the
original facilities and secured on the same basis.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Turnover 44,587 56,779 77,874 97,068 115,067

Operating profit 8,020 11,780 15,397 26,744 33,567
Net interest payable (2,271} (1,979) (20,510) (30,386) (14,942)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - - - - (969)

Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 5,749 9,801 (5,113) (3,642) 17,656

Taxation on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities (2,012) (2,644) (45) 300 787

Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 3,737 7157 (5,158) (3,342) 18,443

Equity minority interests 60 43 (1) - -

Profit/(Loss) for the year 3,797 7,200 (5,159) (3,342) 18,443
Dividends - - - - (2,172)

Retained profit/(loss) for the year 3,797 7,200 (5,159) (3,342) 16,271
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 0.84p 1.63p (1.18p) (0.75p) 4.18p

Basic earnings/(loss) per share has been calculated as if the weighted average number of shares in issue at 31 March 2002 had been

effective in each of the four years ended 31 March 2001.

The results for the year ended 31 March 2000 are derived by combining the audited financial statements of PHS Group plc for
the period from incorporation on 7 July 1999 to 31 March 2000, with the results prior to 7 July 1999 of the holding company

acquired by PHS Group plc on 7 July 1999.
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at The Celtic Manor Hotel and
Country Club, Coldra Woods, Newport, Gwent, NP6 2YA on Friday 12 July 2002 at 4.00 pm, for the following purposes:

Ordinary business

Resolution Number 1

To receive and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2002 together with the reports of the
Directors and auditors thereon.

Resolution Number 2

To approve the declaration of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2002 of 0.29p per ordinary share, to be paid on
21 August 2002 to all shareholders registered at the close of business on 26 July 2002.

To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring from the Board at the first Annual General Meeting of the Company since listing on the
London Stock Exchange.

Resolution Number 3
Mr R D Mackenzie

Resolution Number 4
Mr P ] Cohen

Resolution Nurnber 5
Mr K Bland

Resolution Number 6
Mr ] M Allan

Resolution Number 7
Mr ] G Astrand

Resolution Number 8

To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to
authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Special business

Resolution Number 9

Ordinary resolution

In accordance with Article 6 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised to
allot relevant securities within the meaning of Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount
of £17,062,500 (being 33% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 31 March 2002). Such autherity {unless previously
revoked or varied) to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, but before such expiry, the

authority shall allow the Company to make an offer or agreement that would or might require relevant securities to be allotted
after it expires.

Resolution Number 10

Special resolution

Subject to the passing of the previous resolution 9 and in accordance with Article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors be empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”) and the authority conferred by said

resolution 9, to allot equity securities for cash as if Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to the allotment, provided that such
power is limited to:

() the alfotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue;

(i) the allotment of equity securities in satisfaction of the valid exercise of options pursuant to the Company’s executive
and savings related share option schemes; and

(iii) the allotment (other than in connection with a rights issue) of equity securities having a nominal amount not exceeding
£2,585,227 (being 5% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 31 March 2002).

Such authority (unless previously revoked or varied) to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company, but before such expiry, the authority shall allow the Company to make an offer or agreement that would or might
require equity securities to be allotted after it expires.
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Resolution Number 11

Special resolution

The Company be generally and unconditionally authorised to make market purchases {within the meaning of Section 163(3} of the
Companies Act 1985} of, and 1o cancel, ordinary shares of 10p each in the ordinary share capital of the Company provided that:

{i) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 51,704,545 (being 10% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue at 31 March 2002);

(i) the minimum price that the Company may pay is 10p per share and the maximum price that the Company may pay is 105%
of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinaty share as derived from the Daily Official List of the UK Listing
Authority for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is purchased, in both cases
exclusive of expenses;

(i} the authority hereby conferred (unless previously revoked or varied) shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company, but before such expiry, the authority shall allow the Company to enter into a contract to purchase
ordinary shares which may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority.

By order of the Board

Ly

Keith Bland
Company Secretary
19 |une 2002

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
on a poll, vate instead of him or her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2, A form of proxy is enclosed which holders of ordinary shares in the Company are invited to complete and return in the envelope
provided to be received al the Company’s registered office not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for opening the
meeting. Completion and return of the proxy form in accordance with the instructions thereon does not prevent such
shareholders from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting in person.

3. The register of interests of Directors and their families together with copies of the Directors’ service contracts will be available at
the Company’s registered office on weekdays (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) during usual business hours from the
date of this notice until the date of the Annual General Meeting and will, on the date of the Annual General Meeting, be
available for inspection at the venue of the meeting from 15 minutes prior to and until the conclusion of the meeting.

4. In accordance with Regulation 34 of the Uncertified Securities Regulations 1995, only those members registered in the register of
members at close of business on 10 July 2002 will be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of
shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the register after that time will be disregarded in determining
the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
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